
The Desert Blossoms 
Dr. E. J. Workman, president, New Mexico Institute of Min ing and 
Technology, and J im Voss, Michigan State grad, transform waste-

land into at t ract ive course a t Socorro, N, M , 
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Excellent turf was on Socorro course when it opened Sept. 28 with an e* hi bit ion match. New Mexico 
champion "Spec" Stewart of Albuquerque C C in foreground. At far left {white shirt and t ie ) is 

NMIMT Pres. E. J. Workman who sponsored the course. 

Newest first-class golf course in the 
arid Southwest is at Socorro, N. Mex., 
home of New Mexico Institute of Mining 
and Technology and seat of minerals-rich 
Socorro County. Sponsored and con-
structed by the Institute and its energetic 
president. Dr. E. J. Workman, the 9-hole 
course is 3300 yds. long and luxuriantly 
grassed. Those who have played the 
course pronounce it an interesting layout. 

Socorro is a small abode town of color-
ful heritage, set in the Rio Grande Valley, 
almost exactly midway between Albu-
querque and Truth or Consequences. Some 
60 years ago it was the smelting center of 
a rich mining area, the largest and busiest 
city in New Mexico — proud possessor of 
an opera house, a racetrack, cock pits, 
and all the usual manifestations of pros-
perity and "culture" in that flambuoyant 
era. But the boom days passed, and by 
the beginning of World War I, Socorro 
had reverted to its historic status as a 
small trading town, a way-station on the 
oldest highway in the United States, a 
supply point for the surrounding mining-
agricultural area. 

Golf first came to Socorro in the mid-
dle 1920's, along with that new type of 

American migrant, the rubber-tired tour-
ist, and the so-called tourist industries. 
Times were good, and the stirrings of 
civic pride prompted the newly-formed 
Socorro Businessmen's Association to pro-
vide their community with facilities for 
playing the fast growing game of golf. 

Then as now, the terrain around the 
town was arid and hilly, slashed by deep 
arroyos which cloudbursts converted into 
raging floods, overgrown with greasewood 
and crusted with several centuries' ac-
cumulation of discarded trash. (Socorro 
counts its history from Coronado's visit 
in 1540). But the pioneer Socorro golfers 
were not daunted by obstacles, either in 
building or in play. On that first and very 
primitive course, fairways were cleared of 
shrubbery and dragged, but no grass was 
planted because — unwatered — the seed 
would have been thrown away. The greens 
were of oiled sand, tees were concrete 
slabs with narrow sand channels, and the 
hazard was to strike the ball without 
snapping the handle of the club. Fas-
tidious players dragged the fairways be-
fore venturing out, and old timers aver 
that finding more balls than a player lost 
in the boondocks was considered a Win-



ning score! The going was really rough. 
First Course Abandoned 

Such was golf in Socorro in the 1920's 
and 1930's. Ey 1940, the intrepid devotees 
had weakened, and the course fell into 
disuse — to be quickly reclaimed by the 
ever-encroaching grease wood and mes-
quite. the ever-shifting dust. For more 
than 10 years thereafter, civic pride 
yielded to inexorable circumstance, and 
Socorro golfers motored 75 miles to neigh-
boring cities to play. 

In 1946, Dr. E. J. Workman of the New 
Mexico Research and Development Labo-
ratory in Albuquerque was appointed 
president of New Mexico School of Mines 
mow New Mexico Institute of Mining and 
Technology), the state technological col-
lege in Socorro, Removal of the Labora-
tory to the Socorro campus resulted in a 
sudden influx of population which the 
town's facilities were not adequate to 
meet. 

Dr. Workman, one of the pioneer physi-
cists in the study of cloud precipitation 
and other "miracles" of science and en-
gineering wasn't daunted by prospects at 
his new scene of activity. With income 
from the laboratory, he built a new resi-
dential area, for employees near the cam-
pus, and needed buildings for the Insti-
tute. Taking an active interest in the 
physical, as well as the academic expan-
sion of the institution, he has added hun-
dreds of trees and many acres of lawn to 
the campus landscape. Then, a golf en-
thusiast of many years' standing, Dr. 
Workman began thinking in terms of a 
modern, grassed course on the site once 
occupied by the rustic links of the 1920's. 

Accomplishing the "Improbable" 
There were skeptics. But those familiar 

with the Doctor's habit of accomplishing 
the improbable did not scoff. Among the 
latter was James E. Voss, landscape engi-
neer, who accepted the task of planning 

Mora than 2500 dumptruct loads of rock were 
removed from 33 acres in clearing for ihe NM1MT 
course. Rock was moved to be used ef fect ively 

in course construction. 

and constructing the Socorro course as 
his first major job assignment after re-
ceiving a B.S. degree in landscape archi-
tecture from Michigan State College in 
1950. 

In Voss's words: "Our first problem 
was water. An abandoned gravel pit was 
enlarged and banked to form a 2 Yn million 
gal. reservoir which was lined with 8 in. 
of clay, overlain by 2 in. of crushed rock 
to break up destructive wave action. A 
new 120-ft. well was sunk and a Peerless 
pump equipment with a 15 hp motor was 
installed. A 12-in. pipeline was run under-
ground from the pump to a rock-bed out-
let, giving the appearance of a natural 
spring as the water rises out of the rocks, 
A stream bed was dug to the reservoir 
some 400 ft. away, and lined with clay, 
caliche, arroyo gravel and dirt, to give 
a natural effect. 

"Next, the 40-acre course area was 
cleared of brush, surface rock, and old 
trash, and a 25,000-ft. Transite pipeline 
was laid. Ditches for the latter were 
gouged with a road maintainer set at an 
angle and ranged from 18 to 24 in. deep, 
well below the frost line. Main channels 
run the length of all fairways, and a 
system of laterals supplies water wher-
ever needed. A pumphouse was con-
stmcted, whose intake extends some 80 
ft. into the lake. Three 25-hp. pumps are 
capable of forcing 900 gal. of water 
through the line each minute, to 200 giant 
Buckner sprinklers. Lines are composed 

More than 200 Buckner sprinklers, supplied by 
25,000 ft . of Transite pipe, were installed to quickly 
get and keep fine turf on the N M I M T 9-hole 
course. In background is tower of research labora-
tory of the university's Research and Development 
division, income from which financed course 

construction. 



Reservoir stores 2 /j million gal. water that made 
desert blossom with New Mexico Institute of Min-
ing end Technology course. Reservoir is water haz-
ard on 6th and 7th holes. In the background is 

7000 ft . Socorro Peak. 

of 4- and 6-in. Transite pipe throughout; 
risers are of 1^-in. galvanized pipe. Most 
trenches were cut through very rocky 
ground; therefore much pipe was laid in 
6 in. of sand, for protection. 

Remove 2500 Trucks of lloek 
"After plowing, some 2500 truckloads 

of rocks were removed from the area 
The rock was put to good purpose as fill 
material, for rip-rapping slopes, and in 
constructing dams and levees to divert 
runoff from the mountains and higher 
plains in rainy weather. Also, the rock 
was used to provide bases for greens. At 
each green site, the rocks were laid in 
the desired shape to a depth of 12 to 14 
in., then covered with a 2-in. layer of 
cinders to fill in voids yet insure proper 
drainage. A 2-in. layer of straw and 
manure was added to the cinders, and 12 
to 14 in, of top soil followed. The top 
soil was composed of drainage ditch clay 
from the river-bottom farming region 
around Socorro, mixed with sharp sand 
and peat moss at a ratio of 1:1:1/3, re-
spectively. 

"Generally speaking, fairways follow 
the arroyo bottoms, where alluvial fans 
provided adequate topsoil. However, it 
was necessary to work the rocks out by 
repeated disking, levelling, and floating. 

Yellow-blossom clover was planted in the 
autumn for a green manure crop, and 
before redisking the fairways were en-
riched with animal manure hauled from 
farms and stockyards in the region and 
spread at the rate of 20 tons to the acre. 

"When all soil was ready, the greens 
were planted in bent grass, fairways in 
Bermuda, aprons and tees in bluegrass 
and fescue. Some 1000 trees and shrubs 
were planted, including fruitless mul-
berry, Lombardy poplar, gingko tree, 
flowering peach and quince, globe willow, 
honeysuckle, flowering almond, lilac, 
sweetgum, and pyracantha." 

The course was opened to public play 
on September 28, just 19 months after 
Jim Voss first walked over the area with 
Dr. Workman to size up the task ahead 
of him. It has a par of 36. Of the nine 
holes, five have a par of 4, two a par of 
3, and two a par of 5. Picturesque hole-
names reflect the nature of the course: 
1. The Doctor (commemorating Dr. Work-
man), 2. The Devil's Gulch, 3. Ladies De-
light, 4, The Mountaineer, 5. Grand View. 
6. La Luguna, 7. Jim-Dandy, 8. The Ar-
royo, 9. Lost Trail. 

The course is open to the public. Play-
ing fees are low, and the facility is very 
popular with the townspeople of Socorro, 
as well as with students, faculty, and 
staff personnel at NMIMT, More than 500 
players used the course in its first month 
of operation, many coming in from other 
communities. The town is as pleased as 
the Institute, and golf definitely has come 
to Socorro to stay. 

Western Golf Assn. Elects 
McGiveron to Presidency 

At the Western Golf Assn. annual 
meeting, held Dec. 5 at Chicago, Stanley 
J. McGiveran, Inverness Club, Toledo, O., 
was elected president to succeed Gordon 
E. Kummer. 

Vice presidents elected are: Cameron 
Eddy, Glen View (111.) Club; C. L. Miller, 
Orchard Lake (Mich.) CC; Roy W. Wal-
holm, Indian Hill Club, Colorado Springs, 
Colo.; and Robert L. Walker, South Bend 
(Ind.) CC. Harold O. Moore, Exmoor CC, 
Highland Park, 111., was elected treas. 
Hiram A. Lewis, Broadmoor CC, was 
elected sec. and James L. O'Keefe, Evan-
ston (111.) GC was named general counsel. 

Individual membership of the WGA, un-
der the member "billing" campaign on bag 
tags reached 15,573 in 1952. 


